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5. CtaMification

Ownership of Property
(Check as many boxes as appty)

Category of Property
(Check onty one box )

Number of Resources within Property
(Do not include previously listed resources m the cownL)

Contributing Noncontributing
X private X building(s) 1 buildings

pubic-Local district district
public - State site site
public • Federal structure structure

object object
Total

Name of related multiple property listing
(Enter'N/A* If property e ml part of a muRiiila property Mating)

Number of contributing resources previously 
listed in the National Register

N/A N/A

6. Function or Use
Historic Functions
(Enter catepones from instructions )

AGRICULTURE / SUBSISTENCE /

^ricultural outbuilding

Current Functione
(Enter calagonas from inatnicliona)

AGRICULTURE / SUBSISTENCE / 

Agncuttural outbutMing

7. Description
Architectural Classification
(Enter categories from instructions )

Other Engl^ Bam
(Enter categories from instrucbons)

foundation: STONE
walls WOOD /

roof: METAL/Steel

other
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Narrative Description
(Oescnbe the Motoric and current physical appearance of the property Explain oonMbUBnQ and nonoontnbuting resources if necessary Begin wnth a 
summary peragraph that briefly describes the general characteristics of the property, such as Rs location, selling, size, and wgniAcant features.)

Summary Paraoraph

The Bam on Lot 8. Range G is a one and one-half story, high-posted English styte bam with a T-shaped two bay 
timber-frame addition. The subject property is located on a former Carmsiead which originaNy spanned both sides of 
Foster Hill Road (Route 145, or the 'County Road*) in Freeman Township in Franklin, County Maine The 36 acres kx»ted 
on the east side of the road contain the barn as well as a center-chimney cape with a side eN The cape appears to date to 
toe first haH of toe 19* century, but due to renovations over time, (including the replacement ol siding and toe front entry 
way) no stylistic details remain by which to date the house more specifically To the north and toe south of toe house are 
several acres of fields and toe remnants of an orchard. The south edge of toe property is delineated by a brook and toe 
north edge by a stone wall. The bam is positioned west of the side ell. and is oriented with the long ridge running east to 
west To toe west of toe bam and the fields are woods. Constructed in two phases between circa 1825 and 1899, the 
structure features traditional hand-hewn timber framing with scribe rule joinery in toe older portion and square rufed, sawn 
timber construction in toe newer portion. The two sections combine to create a building with a “T* shaped intersecting 
aisle bordered by animai stalls and extensive hay storage. This bam is an unusual example of how a traditional English 
style bam was expanded to provide for additional storage tor stock, feed, and equipment

Narrative Description

The Bam on Lot 8, Range G is a one and one-hatf story, high-posted English style bam with a T-shaped two bay 
timber-frame addition. Based on the limited land and taxation records that exist for 19* century Freeman, as well as 
evidence intrinsic to the building itself, toe earliest portion of toe bam was bulk circa 1825 The primary entrance »located 
in toe center bay of the north-feeing eaves-side wail of toe forty feet six inch by thirty-six feet English bam. Attached to and 
integrated with the west elevation of toe earlier bam is toe twenty-five feet by thirty-six feet addition.' This new section of 
toe bam has a pair of targe hinged doors centered on the west gable wall. The entire structure is supported by a low 
fieldstone foundation (often simply piles or piers of stone) and is coveted with a steel roof. There is no basement, however 
the grade to the west slopes down hill slightiy, creating a crawl space under the southwest comer of the bam. All four 
sides of the building are dad with vertical sheathing, most of which feature battens between toe planks. The sheathing is 
fastened with cut nails and exhibits circular saw marks, and is probably not toe origir^ cladding on the old bam.

The fenestration is relatively simple and sparse The only break on toe north elevation is toe main door 
Measuring approximately 12 feet wide, this door is hung on toe interior of toe opening and slides westward on a roller 
track As with toe hinged doors on the west elevation the doors on the old bam are constructed of braced verticai boards. 
Examination of the interior »de of this door indicates that rt has been re-designed and re-hung, having most likely been 
hung at one point as a two-leaf, exterior-hinged door On toe east gable wall are two pedestrian doors (located at the north 
and south edges of toe wall), between which are four window frames, all but one of which are devoid of sash. The 
remaining sash is a fixed stx-lighi Centered under the gable peak is a six-over-six double-hung wooden window. Like the 
larger bam doors, the two doors on toe east waH are constructed of braced vertical board, but these are hung on cast strap 
hinges. The southern elevation contains three six-light windows in toe old portion of the bam (one of which is misstog its 
sash). The west elevation contains the two-ieaf door, fastened with machine-made strap hinges hung on pintles. Above 
toe doorway are three transom windows, now blocked and missing sash As wrto toe east elevation, a six-over-six window 
is positioned below toe gable peak

On the interior, the two sections of the B^ on Lot 8. Range G exhibit two distinct phases of construction. The old 
bam has three interior bays, oriented north to south The bam door opens to a central aisle with a dirt fkx>r. A loft at hay 
mow height spans toe southern third of the aisle, and a high scaffold connected to the pnmary girts is positioned over the 
northern two thirds of toe aisle Above the door a tong, smooth, log rests on two braces that run from the west wall down 
to the edges of toe secondary girts at hay loft level. The sapling is held in place by a pair of bent-wood 'stables* pegged to 
toe braces. While the purpose of this feature is not fully known it appears to have been used to hang or hoist items. The 
east side of toe bam is currently divided into three spaces In the northeast comer is toe former tie up. with a white-washed 
tow ceiling exhibiting the former location of stanchions The southern end of this room has more recently been partitioned

‘ For ease of discription this section will be refered lo as the “new” section and the original bam as toe “old” section.



NPS Fom* 10-900

BARN ON LOT 8. RANGE S 
Namo of Property

0MB No 1024-0018 (E^ms 901/2012)

FRANKUN COUNTY. MAINE
County and State

with Wire and used to house poultry In the southeast comer is a narrow stall with a wooden manger and (blocked) 
opening in the white-washed ceiling to the loft above. The stall and the poultry room have wooden floors, and the west 
walls of the rooms are partitioned from the central aisle with horizontal boarding, and from each other by vertical boarding. 
Above the entire eastern bay is a hay loft. The west bay contains a dirt floor mow. open to the rafters, in the north and an 
enclosed workroom located in the former stalls in the north The walls of the work roomfstalls are finished with horizontal 
bead-board sheathing, and two wooden, hinged “windows* are located on the north wall (facing the trans-axial aisle).

At the center of the western half of the old bam is the start of the new aisle. This tvrelve foot wide aisle continues 
westward, under the ridge of the new section of the bam to the hinged doors on the west gable wall. To the south are a 
pair of large stalls, with wooden floors and relatively new horizontal sheathing and half doors along the aisle. North of this 
long aisle are two bays with wooden floors An unfastened upper floor on loosely positioned joists covers the northwestern 
space and a storage space for wood. The center bay north of the aisle is open to the rafters, as are the two stalls across 
the aisle and the northwestern most bay in the old portion of the bam. As originally configured, the entire north wall of the 
structure, with the excepton of the tie-up in the northeast, was designed for hay storage, as were the hay lofts It also 
appears that the two newer stalls on the south wan were built in areas formerly dedicated to hay storage.

The frame of the old portion of the Bam on Lot 8, Range G is of traditional hand hewn, timber frame construction 
The major structural members include primary and secondary girts, running parallel to the center «sle. supported on 
upright posts and mortised and tenoned into the plates and nailers. All of the plates are continuous, but the nailers are set 
between posts. The tall perimeter posts are not strictly ‘gunstock’ in shape, but they are slightly larger in dimension at the 
top in order to accept the major rafters, girts and plates. Evidence of scribing is apparent both on the major structural 
members as well as the joist pockets in the eastern bays. All joints are fastened with pegs, and angle braces are utilized at 
each perimeter post-plate or post-girt connection. In several instances wire staples have been added to reinforce tension 
joints. The roof system features rru^ rafters and minor purlins. The bent vrhich was originally the west gable wall of the 
English bam contains original nailers on the first floor, and empty mortises in whsrt wm the end girt for angle braces and 
an interior post, now removed and possibly relocated to the south edge of the aisle

In contrast to the older section of the bam, the two bay new addition has a central aisle that runs paraiel to the 
eaves and the ridge. At first examination this section of the bam is similar to the ‘bent* construction characteristic of 
gable-front New England style bams, however this is not the case as the plates on the north and south walls are 
continuous. Nonetheless, the two bents added to the west side of the old bam contain plate-level girts positioned 
perpendicular to the ridge supported by fkx>r-to-girt posts on either side of toe aisle. On top of the girts are short braces 
reaching to toe rafters, and angle bracing is used on toe interior side of each girt-post connection. The plate on the south 
side appears to be an undersized timber (4“ x 7“) on top of which a second timber has been placed so as to keep toe 
plane of toe roof consistent between toe two sections of the building All of the timbers in toe new section of the bam are 
sawn and many exhibit circular saw marks, which are indicative of a construction date of at least 1830, toe year in which 
the circular saw was invented

The interior of the bam was updated after the addition was complete. The orientation of toe stalls to the long leg 
of toe T-shaped aisle indicate that they were reoriented, if not constructed after toe addition was m place. Beadboard 
sheathing became common only after the Civil War. The partitions between the southeast comer stall and toe poultry 
room appear to have been constructed in toe 20** century - the whitewashed ceiling in the eastern bay. the line of windows 
on toe east wall and pair of doors in the northeast and southeast comers indicate toe entire eastern b^ probably 
functioned as a tie-up for dairy cows Empty mortises also show that a hay mow previously spanned the western third of 
toe building, but this was removed in part when the bam vras expanded. The exterior board and batten sheathing is 
consistent in age around the entire building, indicating that the structure was re-sided as a unit.
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8. StalMiMnt of Signiflcanco
AppNcablo Natkmal Rtgistor Criteria
(Marti V in one or more boaas for the crtena qualifying the property 
for National Register listing)

A Property is associated witfi events that have made a 
sigiiificant contribution to the broad patterns of our 
htetory

B Property is assodaled with the lives of persons 
sigiiificant in our past.

C Property embodies the distinctive characteristics 
of a type, period, or method of construction or 
represents ttie work of a mastar, or possesses high 
artistic values, or represents a significani 
and distinguishable entity whose components lack 
individual distinction.

O Property has yielded, or is Nkeiy to yield, infotmalion 
important in prehistory or history.

Afaas of Signifkanca 
(Enter categories from instructions.)
ARCHITECTURE

Pariod of Slgniflcanca

C. 1825-C. 1899

Significant Data*

Criteria Considerations
(Mark V in ait the boxes that apply.)

Property is;

A Owned by a religious instttution or used for religious 
purposes.

B removed from its original location.

C a birthplace or grave.

0 aoamelary.

E a reconstructed building, object, or structure.

F a oommemoralive property.

G less than 50 years old or achieving signllicanoe 
within the past 50 years.

Significant Parson
(CompMs onty VCiiianon B a marked above.)

Culture Affiliation

ArehNsct/Builder

Pariod of Significanca Oustification)

The period of significance begins with the estimated year (c. 1825) that the original English-style Bam was oonstnictad. 
The period of significance doses 1899, which is inscribed on an interior wall as part of the phrase ‘Sendy stood here May 
fi*’ 1899'.

Criteria ConsMeratlone (axplanation, if naceeaary)
None apply
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Statemont of Significance Summary Paragraph (Provide a aommary paragraph that Indudea levei of tignificance and appNoaUe 
oitena)

The Bam on Lot 8. Range G bam is an English style bam modified in plan to provide for additional livestock, equipment 
and feed storage." Built circa 1825, the older part of this two-sectkxi barn exhibits a hewn timber frame, comptex joirtery 
fastened with pegs, and a traditional three-bay plan with center aisle. Before the end of the century a two-bent addition 
was erected on the west, gable^nd wall. Constructed of schbe-nrled sawn timber, but utilizing similar joinery, the new 
section of the bam increased the footprint of the building from about 1500 to 2400 square feet The placement of this 
addition created an unusual T- shaped set of aisles, and would enable future additions to be made in a manner similar to 
those utilized with New England style bams This method of expanding an English Bam has not been commonly 
recognized in Maine'*, and differs from the three usual methods used in northern New England as identified in publications 
by architectural hotorians in the region The Bam on Lot 8, Range G is eligible for listing in the National Register of 
Historic Places at the local level of significance under Criterion C, architecture This building derives its significance for foe 
manner in which it ilkatrales a new variation on a method arxl pwiod of construction associated with evolving agncultural 
practices in the nineteenth century

Narrative Statement of Significance (Provide al least one paragrapn for each area of significance )

Criterion A: Architecture

The Bam on Lot 8. Range G represents one method of enlarging an existing Engiish-styie bam to meet changing 
agricultural methods and practices. The English bam was similar to bams traditionally erected in 17** and 18”^century 
England (See Figures 1 and 2) Almost without variation foe bam was three bays wide with the primary entrance located 
in the middle bay of the eave-side walls, and constructed primarily of scribe-ruled, hewn timbers with complex joinery 
fastened with hardwood pegs The side-wall construction, and low posting enabled it to be raised relatively easily without 
foe need for large numbers of participants.*' The basic design of the building remained substantially unchanged through 
foe first decades of the 19^ century, even when sawn timbers and square rule construction supplanted foe more labor 
intensive method of scribing each joint individually- Not until foe mid-19*' century were these structures routinely connected 
to the dwelling house - and in most cases this was done “after the fact” rather than as part of foe initiai dMign

In his seminal work on bams and farm buildings, Thomas Durant Visser provides a brief history of this bam form and how 
the buMings functioned within foe context of substance-levei fomily farms. The fbllowjng excepts are from Visser's 1997 ^ 
Field Guide to New Ftvptond Rams and Farm BuildinQS.

For two centuries after foe initial English colonial settlemenL New Englartders bmlt their bams to a 
standard design inherited from England with modifications made in response to the North American 
climate. Traditionaily referred to by formers simply as “the bam' and later as foe *thir1y-by-forty,' these 
eariy bams, now known as English bams, typically measure about thirty feet by forty feet They feature a 
simple gable roof with a pair of large hinged doors on the front eaves-side wall.

To survive and prosper through the long, harsh winters, New England form families required a substantial 
building - often larger than the house - in which to stable their animals, store food for the animals and 
themselves, and shelter activities such as threshing grain, repairing equipment and doing ofoer farm 
work...

" ^cause the precise ownership of the bam when it was first constructed and when it was later ahcred » unknow, the tnm is refenccd 
by the lot and range on whichit sat in the town of Freeman, fhis desciption of the property continues to be used in late 20*' century 
deeds.

To date, the State Historic Preservation Office is unaware of any other F.nglish bams modified in this manner in Maine.
** Side wall construction was used with English bams. In this framing technique the long side walls were assembled as a uniL raised, 
and then connected with girts and rafters. Rent construction, which characterira New England style bams, refers to the practice of 
assembling bents, (including posts, tie-beams or girts, collar ties and rafters), raising them as a unit and connecting the bents with 
plates and interior framing.

6
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Light and fresh air would enter early English bams through the cracks between the sheathing boards 
rather than through windows By the earty 1600s. however, transom lights with glass window panes were 
often added above the main bam doors, along with small windows placed high in the gable ends

EngTish bams buiR before 1810 often have vertical sheathing boards fastened with hand-wrought 
'rosehead* nails and flared ‘gunstock’ hardwood posts inside, while those buttt between 1810 and 1840 
typically have machine -cut nails and uniformly dimensioned posts.

Inside. English bams are divided into three sections; a wooden threshing floor in the center; enclosed 
stables for dairy cows, horses, and other farm animate on one side; and a hay mow or ‘bay* on the other 
side. . . Above the center floor is an upper hayloft, known by New England farmers as the scaffold or the 
rye-beams, typically reached by a ladder fixed to one of the center posts. Most scaffolds just have iooee 
boards or saplings laid between the beams to support the hay while providing ventilation beneath.
(Vissser. pp 61-63.)

Throughout the areas of Maine settled 1800 the English bam was the principal type of agricultural buiding erected on 
farmsteads. The English bam continued to be buiR in new settlement through the first decades of the century, however, 
this form of bam had one significant limitation: H could not be expanded easily During the first years of settlement the 
English bam provided ample sheRer for a taw oows, a pair of oxen, and the hay or other grains needed to feed them. For 
successful farmers the size of the farms grew, additional fields were cleared and planted to grass, and the amount of 
livestock increased beyond mere subsistence level. Starting at the turn of the nineteenth century a new form of 
agricultural outbuilding appeared on the Maine landscape Frequ^dy referred to as a New England style bam, this 
structure reoriented the aisle to run under and parallel with the hdge. (See Figures 2 and 3.) As a resuR, the primary 
doorfs) were located in the gable end wall(s). Mows were generally positioned north or west of the aisle and animat 
facilfbes in the southern or eastern bay. One of the benefits of this type of bam was that R was constructed of bents, or 
frame units, that spanned the width of the bam Should the size of the bam need to be incr^sed to provide shelter for 
additional equipment, livestock or feed, additional bents could be added to either end and the length of the bam extended. 
And as agricuRure developed in the Great Lakes and mid-west regions, it became increasingly dtfficuR for Maine's farmers 
who remained small to be competitive in the agncuRural markets. Thomas Hubka, in Bio House. Little House. Back 
House. Bam summarizes the trends behind the shift in barn form.

The change from old English to New England bam is property associated with a series of major ecortomic 
and social changes that transformed many aspects of New England's rural cuRure in the late eighteenth 
and early nineteenth centuries Generally, the new bam form was an outgrowth of a more commercial 
agricuHural operation. The selection of this new bam was initially implemented by large-scale, progressive 
farmers in the earty 1800s and gradually adopted by most farmers between 1820 and 1880 Its selection 
represented a modest but fundamental step toward a mid nineteenth-century model of commercialized 
agricuRure while simuHaneously retaining many of the older patterns of mixed-farming production and 
traditional bam construction. (Hubka, p. 52.)

In toe 1860s toe Elias Brackiey family occupied the farm and in the 1870s it passed to the Hiram Durrell family. NeRher of 
these were commercial farmers, but based on toe agricuRural census, they were modestly prosperous.* The details, 
event or interYbon that caused one of them to enlarge toe bam can only be inferred from the greater agricultural trends 
mentioned briefly above. They did not choose to construct a new bam, but instead chose to aRer toe existing bam in an 
irReresting fashion.

Both Hubka and Visser discuss toe most common methods of enlarging an English bam. One option was to re-orient toe 
primary doors to the gable ends This then necessitated removing the center posts under all the girts and replacing each 
wRh a pair of posts on eRher side of toe new aisle. Ideally then, toe ohentation of the haymows would turn 90 degrees and 
in toe feture addRional bents could be constructed at eRher gable end Another option, which was somewhat less mvasive, 
but also less efficient, was to move another English barn alongside the first In this scenario the common walls between 
the two structures might be breached (or simply perforated by a door or senes of doors), but toe overall structure would 
have two parallel aisies, separated by interior hay lofts (and/or animal stalls). This approach was used at the Moody Farm 
in Searsrriont (NR: 02(X)1269). in toe mid-nineteento century, and has also been documented on a farm in Harpswell,

* The occupant of the term in 1850 was Abner Collier. Although he is listed as a farmer in the census no agricultural census was 
completed for him. By 1860 he is described as a pauper and is residing in another house in the neighborhood. The owner of the fann 
from 1870 to 1872 was Hiram L. Presson, whose agricultural census revealed a marginal farming operation.

7
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Maine. Visser has observed as many as five English bams joined in this fashion White nof as efficient from a labor 
perspective, in those regions of New England where farms were being abandoned and farm buildings left to decay it was 
not difficult to locate a 'spare' New England bam of similar dimensions and move it to a different farm The third option, 
illustrated by Hubka, was to again move the door to the gable end wail, but position it not at the center of the waU. but 
against a comer Then a shed-roof addition would be built against the adjacent eave wall, oeating a three (or four) bay 
longitudinal barn Hubka provides as an example the Anderson Farm in Windham. Maine

The expansion of the bam in Freeman does not folow either of these models. Instead of attempting to enlarge the bam 
and retain one long aisle, the expansion of the subject bam created a‘T* shaped aisle system consisting of the origteal, 
short center aisto intersecting with a newly positioned, long aisle in the addition. In this approach the two new bents were 
positioned as they would be in a New England Bam (across the width of the buMing, spanning the aiste) and the plane of 
the roof remained consistent. (Figure 5) The design of the new bents did not really differ from a variation commonly seen 
in New England bams, but they did differ from the original English bam bents due to their two floor to rafter posts, versus 
the one found in the earlier barn. (Figure 6) In order to make the transition one original interior post in the west bay was 
repositioned and another post added (Figure 7). That section of what had been hay loft was then converted to open 
aiste (Figure 8) Otherwise this method required little interior alteration Indeed, while there are slight differences in the 
materials and workmanship between the two sections, to the un-trained eye the roof structure has a consistent pattern of 
rafters, girts and posts (except at the east end of the building). What is significantly different is the orientation of the 
central aiste to the ridge After the expansion it would have relatively simple for the bam to be lengthened again if 
necessary. Figures 9 and 10 show exterior views of the expanded bam

Agricultural architecture is often fluid, many barns and other out buildings are relativeiy straightfonward structures, 
uncomplicated by interior finishes, bearing walls, chimneys, stairs and other features that characterize houses. Moving a 
bam or altering a bam is easier with exposed framing, especially when the construction techniques and details are 
complimentary, if not consistent. White it is not likely that the variations are endless, the Bam on Lot 8. Range G adds 
another method to our understanding of how farmers adapted structurally to evolving agriculture and agricultural 
technology.

Developmental histofy/additional histortc context information (if appropriate)

The Barn on Lot 8, Range G is located the unincorporated township of Freeman. Maine The township is approximately 
15 miles northwest of Farmington, the Franklin County seat, and at present the 26 square mile township hosts a population 
of between 2(X) and 300 residents The terrain consists of hills separated by a branch of the Sandy River and several 
substantial streams that traditionatly supported saw and gristmill sites Although flat bottom land is scarce, the 1882 
Gazetteer of Maine reported that ‘the soil is fertile, though hard to cultivate. Freeman Ridge, occupying a large portion of 
the northern part of the town is said to be the best for tillage' (Varney, p. 243) Another source indicates that the southern 
slopes of the town's hills were particularly suitable for orchards and sugar-bushes (maple groves)*'. The vast proportion of 
the population during the ltf*“ century were identified as farmers in the 1850 and 1900 census, but ft is likely that many of 
them were also involved with lumbering.*"

Freeman was sunreyed about 1797 and was one of two townships granted to the settlers of Falrrxxjth (Portland), Maine 
who were burned out by the British during the Revolutionary War The town incorporated in 1803 and the population rose 
steadily from 237 inhabitants in 1810 to 838 three decades later. Over the next century the population shrank by at least 
ten percent annually, to a recorded low of 185 In 1950 In 1934 the town voted to disincorporate, since then the township’s 
population has been harder to track

Between 1790 and 1848 the county in which the township was located changed from Lincoln to Kennebec (1799) to 
Somerset (1809) to Franklin (1838). As a result, tracking the ownership record of the property is difficult The earliest 
deeds located were dated 1825 and 1826. In that earlier year Samuel Freeman, the pmpnetors agent for the town, 
granted 6/10’s of Lot 8. Range G to Nathaniel J Perley, Jr. of Livermore. Maine The following year neighbors John 
Brackley and Marshall A. Whitney quit claimed ‘all right and title to lot No. eight in Range G... or to the improvements

" Thompson, introduction.
"* Of 220 residents for whom an occupation provided in 1850 felly 209 were identified as “fanners”, (total population of town was 
762). In 1900, 128 of the 147 employed residents were enumerated as cither “fanners” or “farm laborw”, (total population of town 
was 397. httD://www.librarv.umaine.edu/'census/townsearch.asp

8
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thefaon' to 0ie same Nathaniel J. Pertey. How they lay daim to any right or title in the lot is unknown - no deed has been 
found to either man, or his family that references this tot Howev^, both the Whitney and Brackley families had extensive 
land holdings in this section of town

The reference to 'the improvements thereon,' ator>g with technological and stylistic details, provides the basis for dating 
the bam at circa 1825. However, as the earlier history of the property is still unknown it is not unrealistic to suggest the 
bam may have been built as many as 25 years earker. Indeed, 1^5 would in many communities be a rather late date for 
the construction of a new English bam.

The other end of the period of significance is derived from an inscription written on the boardino above the staHs in the new 
section of the bam. While it is dear the bam had been altered when ‘Sendy stood here, May 5*. 1899', the changes 
probably occurred slightly after Hiram Ourrell purchased the property in 1872. Comparison of the 1880 agricuKurai census 
with the 1860 agricultural census for then owner EUas Brackley suggests that the bam had been enlarged by the time the 
latter census had been conducted. Although both men kept the same number of cows and cattle, Ourrell also had a horse 
The value of the farm had increased by $300 and the value of the livestock by $165 during that same period But the most 
telling statistic was the difference in amount of hay they raised. In 1860 Brackley reported putting up 12 tons of hay but 
1880 Durrel put up 25 tor» of hay - nxxe than double the amount Based on this statistic alone it is likely that Dunell 
expanded the bam between 1872 and 1880.
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10. GeograpMcal Data

Acreage of ProfMrty Less than one. 
(Do not include previously lisled rasouroe acreage.)

UTM Referencee
(Ptaoe additional UTM refeienoes on a continuation sheet)

1 19 403764 4971028
Easting Northing Zone Easbng Norttting

Zone Easting Northing Zone Easting Northing

Verbal Boundary Description (Describe the boundaries of the property.)

Although the farmstead occupies thirty six acres, because this nomination is for architecture not agriculture, the b The 
boundaries of the Bam on Lot 8. Range G are limited to the footprint of the barn plus a 15 foot perimeter around the bam. 
to encomp^s the slight ramps leading to the doors.

Boundary Justification (Explain why the boundanet were selected.)
Although the farmstead on which the Bam on Lot 8 Range G is located occupies thirty six acxes, bemne this nomination 
is for architecture not agriculture, the boundaries have been drawn to incorporate only the contributing resource.

11. Form Prepared By

name/title Christi A. Mitchell, architectural historian _____ _______ ___

organization Maine Historic Preservation Commission' 

street & number 55 Capitol Street ___

city or town Augusta. Maine 

e-mail fltoiaine.oov

date 18 January 2011

telephone (207) 287-2132 x 2 

State Maine zip code 04333-0065

Additional Documentation
Submit the following Hems with the completed form:

i: A uses map (7 5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property’s location

A Sketch map for historic distnets and properties having large acreage or numerous resources. Key all 
photographs to this map

• Continuation Sfiaals

• Additional items: (Check with the SHPO or FPO for any additional items.)
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PhciooraplM:
Submit dear and descriptive ptiotographs. The size of each image must be 1000x1200 pixels at 300 ppi (pixels per inch) 
or larger Key all photographs to the sketch map

Name of Property: 
City or Vicinity: 
County: 
Photographer 
Date Photographed:

Bam on Lot 8. Range G
Freeman Township
Franklin State: Maine
Chhsb A. Mitchell, kteine Historic Preservation Comm^ton, Augusta, Maine 
September 2,2009 (# 1) and August 19.2010 (# 2-8)

Description of Photograph(s) and number:

1 of 8 ME.FRANKLIN COUNTY_BARN ON LOT 8 RANGE 6_0001.tif
Exterior of bam, fKing southeast

2 of 8 ME.FRANKLIN COUNTY_BARN ON LOT 8 RANGE G_0002.tif
Exterior, north elevation, facing south.

3 of 8 ME_FRANKLIN COUNTY_BARN ON LOT 8 RANGE 6_0003Jlf
Exterior, facing northwest

4 of 8 ME.FRANKLIN COUNTY.BARN ON LOT 8 RANGE G_0004.tif
Inte^, facing northwe^ Wooden hoist above door in English bam.

5 of 8 ME.FRANKLIN COUNTY.BARN ON LOT 8 RANGE G_0005.tif
Interior of English bam, hayloft level. Facing northeast

6 of 8 ME.FRANKLIN COUNTY.BARN ON LOT 8 RANGE G_0006.tif
Interior, facing south down the center aisle in the original English bam. The scaffold is at the top of the 
photograph and the hay lofts are located near the bottom of the photograph.

7 of 8 ME.FRANKLIN COUNTY.BARN ON LOT 8 RANGE G.0007.tif
Interior, easternmost bay of bam, facing south. Hokw in the whitewashed celling beam show the location 
of the former stanchions in the mllMng parlor.

8 of 8 ME.FRANKLIN COUNTY.BARN ON LOT 8 RANGE G.0008.tif
Interior, facing west; The framing bent in the foreground was originally the west wall of the English bam. 
The addition is in the background.

Property Owner:

(Complete this item M the mque*to» the SHPO or FPO) ____________________________________________

name
street & number 

dtyortown __

telephone
state zip code

Pepefwoit ReeucSon Act Btetewient: This information ie being collected for applications to the National Register of Historic Plaoos to nominate 
properties far ieteig or determine aHgtoety for listing, to list properlias, and to amend ewating lalings. Responee to tfiis request M requirad to obtain a 
benailt m acoontanos w«i the National Hatoric Presarvabon Act. as amended (16 U S C 460 at seq)
Eattmatad Burden Statamant Public reporting burden for Iha form s esbmatod to average 18 hours per reeponae tndudmg tima tor reviewtng 
instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding foie burden eebmata or any aspect of 
this form to the Office of Planning and Performance Management. U S Dept of the Interior, 1849 C. Street, NW. Washington. DC.
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The foNowmo five pages cortmn ooncaptuai dagnarts of the Bam on Lot 8. Range G. creeled in order Id iHusIrale the 
structural evolution of this structure, as descnbed m Section 8 The diagrams are not measured drawings and they are 
not to scale No attempt has been made to depict jomery

All diagrams deated by Chnst A. Mitchell, Architectural Historian. Maine Historic Presatvatton Commission, Augusta. 
Maine on January 27-28 2011 utHizmg Google SketchUp 7 1

Figure 1: Engllah Bam Frame

Ev
Hit

Figure 2: EngHeli Frame wtth hay tofla and scaffold.
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Figure 3. New England style bam frame.

Figure 4. New Englartd Bam Frame with hay lofts.
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FIquis 8: Relativt posittoes ol Englleli bam fteme and Naw England tMm frame, with poeta In odginat poaillons.

Figure 8; Ralattva posMons of Engllali bam frame and New England bam frame. The arrowa point to the posis 
and alll in the Engliah bam that had to be repositioned
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Figure 7. RelafHve poeMons of EngRih bam frame and New England bam frame. The arrows poiM to Hie 
relocated poets.

Figure B: Final structural configuration of the expanded bam.



United States Oapartmanl of tiM Intoftor 
Nsttonal Part Sarvica

National Register of Historic Places Continuation Sheet

Wama of Property BASH OK LOT t, RANGE O 

County and SUte FWANKLIN CO , MAIMC 

Nmiw Of muiopte praperty latMip {H appttiaWe)

Sedwn mjwfcer 8 Pipe i

Figure 9: Extorter of expanded Eni^iali bam, facing southwaat

Figure 10: Exterior of expanded English bam. facing souiheaaL
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Keq)er of the National Register 
National Park Service 2280 
National Roister of Historic Places 
1201 T (Eye) Street, NW, 
Washington D.C. 20005

To Whom It May Concern:

Enclosed please find four (4) new National Register nominations for properties located in
the State of Maine:
«

Bam on Lot 8, Range G; Franklin County 
Waterford Historic District Boundary Increase, Oxford County 
Kennebunk High School (former), York County 
E.C. and M.I. Record Homestead, Oxford County

The photographs for the Kennebunk High School and the E.C. and M.I. Record 
Homestead were printed on an Epson Stylus Photo R 1900 printer using Epson UltraChrome 
High Gloss 2 Ink for the R1900 series on Epson Premium Photo Paper Glossy. The photographs 
for the Bam o Lot 8, Range G and the Waterford Historic District Eioundary Increase were 

printed using Hewlett Packard Premium Plus Photo Paper and Vivera Inks on a Hewlett Packard 
Photosmart C7280 printer. These combinations of printer, ink, and paper were tested by Wilhelm 
Imt^ng Research and found to meet the archival standards of the National Register.

If you have any questions relating to these nomination, please do not hesitate to contact 
me at (207) 787-2132x2.

Sincerely,

Christi A. Mitchell 
Architectural Historian

Enc.

PHONE: (207)217-2132 FAX: (207) 287-2335


